
WINDHAM PLANNING & ZONING COMISSION 

minutes of March 24, 2016 

1 

 

The Windham Planning & Zoning Commission held its meeting on March 24, 2016 in the 2
nd

 floor 

Conference Room in Windham Town Hall.   

I) Call to order: 

Chair Paula Stahl called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.  Commission members present were 

Paula Stahl, Chair, Jean Chaine Vice-Chair, Claire Lary, Michael Graf, Edward Pelletier, and Alternate 

Scott Lambeck.  Also present were Town Planner James Finger and ZEO Matthew Vertefeuille.  

II) Approval of Minutes for Feb. 25, March 5 Site Walk, & March 10, 2016 

Commissioner Chaine noted that for the Minutes for Feb. 25, he found a typo on page two in the 

fourth paragraph down under his name - where it mentioned '...clearing...' but it should read 

'...clearly...'. Commissioner Chaine then made a MOTION TO ACCEPT the minutes for February 25, 

2016 as corrected;  Commissioner Lary SECONDED the motion, and all voted in favor. The Chair 

then called for action on the March 5 Site Walk. Commissioner Lary made a MOTION TO ACCEPT 

the minutes of March 5, 2016, and Commissioner Pelletier SECONDED the motion. The Chair asked 

for any discussion or corrections; hearing none -  all voted in favor except Commissioners Chaine 

and Stahl who were not present.  Next the minutes of March 10, 2016; Commissioner Chaine 

MOTION TO ACCEPT the minutes of March 10, 2016. Michal Graf SECONDED the motion, and all 

voted in favor except for Commissioner Pelletier who abstained. 

III) Public Hearings: 

a) David Torres, 204 Summit Street, Willimantic, CT. – Special Permit application for adding a 

second apartment in an owner occupied dwelling in a Neighborhood Preservation Residence 

District in accordance with Section 27.3.1.  

Claire Lary recused herself from participating and left the room.  Alternate Scott Lambeck was 

designated as a voting member. 

The Chair explained the process of letting Mr. Torres explain his application, and the Commission 

will ask questions; then the public will be allowed to offer comments.   

Mr. Torres explained that he would like to convert a 1-family home to a 2-family home for owner 

and one tenant because the dwelling is too large for his family.  He said the dwellings would have 

separate staircases.  The owner’s dwelling would consist of 3 bedrooms and the tenant’s dwelling 

would consist of 4 bedroom, a total of 7 bedrooms. 

A discussion ensued. 

Chair Paula Stahl explained that if and when Mr. Torres sells the property the house would remain 

as a 2-family dwelling.  Commissioner Jean Chaine said if the house changes hands does the new 

owner of the property have to live in the house; and if so,  how would that be enforced.  ZEO Matt 

Vertefeuille said when a single family dwelling transfers to a multi-family dwelling his office is 

notified.  He added that Mr. Torres could sell the property to anyone and it would not have to be 



WINDHAM PLANNING & ZONING COMISSION 

minutes of March 24, 2016 

2 

 

owner occupied.  Michael Graf asked if each dwelling would have its own furnace.  Mr. Torres said 

the furnaces are separate as are the utilities. 

Chair Stahl opened the hearing for comments from the audience. Several residents from the 

surrounding neighborhood spoke in opposition to granting approval.  1) Ms. June Bisantz , 21 

Chestnut Street, Willimantic, CT expressed her concern with parking.  She said allowing the 

conversion would change the character of this historic neighborhood which is mostly single-family 

owner-occupied homes. She urged the Commission to not grant the Special Permit.  

2) Thomas Harrison Judd, 21 Chestnut Street, Willimantic, CT. said he lives in a house that is pretty 

much the same size as Mr. Torres’ and there are two of us living there. He said he feels very 

connected to the community and said the history of an area is in its buildings. The architecture in 

Willimantic is quite unique.  He said he has nothing against Mr. Torres, but he feels the 

neighborhood has to be preserved not only for now, but for the long term.   

3) Doug Lary, 182 Summit Street, Willimantic, CT said he is concerned that a two-family home could 

become an absentee owned property, and would likely fill up with college students.He said he has 

had problems with renters in the past especially when the owner does not occupy the dwelling.  He 

went on to identify properties that have been destroyed because of this same situation.  He said 

there is already a distressed building next to his property. Although the lot is a third of an acre, the 

rear portion of the property drops off steeply and is not usable. He said parking is also a problem. 

The existing narrow driveway is shared with other properties.  A two-family home in this location 

with seven bedrooms would increase traffic, and congest the narrow street with on-street parking, 

especially with cars parked on both sides of the street.  This would also present a safety hazard to 

the residents in winter months when snow makes it difficult to maneuver the streets as there is 

only a single lane for traffic.  He urged the Commission to not approve the request for Special 

Permit.  

4) A letter from Margaret & Tom Hebert and Emma Carey, both residents of Summit Street, 

Willimantic CT urged the Commission to vote against the request.  The plan calls for seven 

bedrooms.  That would increase the number of people living in what has always been a single-

family dwelling.  This would change the tone of this old Victorian Historic neighborhood. 

Discussion continued.  Chair Stahl said this is in an NPR District and said she had a concern with 

adding extra bedrooms and people in this area.  It could also affect the value of the properties in 

the neighborhood. Commissioner Ed Pelletier questioned if there is ample parking.  Mr. Torres said 

you could park three cars back there, and one in the garage.  Commissioner Jean Chaine said the 

potential for extra vehicles could pose significant problems for the neighborhood.  

As there were no further comments the public hearing was closed.   

Chair Stahl made a MOTION to approve the application, but the MOTION FAILED for the lack of a 

second.  Commissioner Jean Chaine MOTION TO DENY the application stating that it did not meet 

the spirit and intent of the regulations.  Michael Graf SECONDED the motion.  



WINDHAM PLANNING & ZONING COMISSION 

minutes of March 24, 2016 

3 

 

Discussion on the motion: 

Chair Stahl reviewed the standards for issuing a Special Permit.  She said the lot is very tight and 

she is concerned with how this would affect the neighborhood, adding that it would put a lot of 

stress on the neighborhood.  Commissioner Ed Pelletier said he felt there wasn’t enough parking 

for seven bedrooms.  Chair Stahl asked for a vote on the motion and the seated members - Paula 

Stahl, Chair, Jean Chaine Vice-Chair, Michael Graf, Edward Pelletier, and Alternate Scott Lambeck - 

voted to deny the application. 

Commissioner Claire Lary resumed her seat on the commission. 

b) Steven Edelman, - Gilead Enterprises – 90 Back Road & 40-44 Old Brooklyn for Earth Excavation.  

Chair Stahl announced that this application is postponed until April 28, 2016. 

IV) Interview of Milone & MacBroom on proposal for updating the Town Plan of Conservation and 

Development. Representatives from Milone & MacBroom gave a presentation summarizing their 

qualifications and their proposal for services.   Michael Zuba, AICP , Associate Director of Planning 

and Rebecca Augur, AICP, Principal Planner said their planning group has completed over 35 

POCD’s, including several for municipalities similar to Windham. Their qualifications and proposal 

for services represents a complete response for the services requested by the Town.  They then 

went on and reviewed their document which outlined their proposal. 

A discussion ensued. 

Commission members asked questions about fees for service, history of work in similar 

communities, public outreach, meetings with the Commission, and ownership of Geographic 

Information Data layers. The Commission thanked the consultants with no action taken.   

Chair Stahl encouraged Commission members to check consultant references on the four proposals 

that were submitted, and to be prepared to discuss these at the next work session. 

V) Report from Zoning Enforcement officer 

ZEO Matt Vertefeuille gave an update on the following properties: 74 Elm Street, 20 Maple Avenue, 

144 Manners Avenue and 85 Church Street. He said construction should start within the next 

couple of weeks on the former Uncle Ken site. 

VI) Routine Business 

Chair Stahl reported that Gilead Enterprises must go before the Inland Wetlands Commission 

before returning to the P&Z. 

As there were no further comments, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 9:15 P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted  Lillian Murray, Clerk, and edited James Finger, Town Planner 


